

"The Home Office" published by Fred G. Hyatt, 400 State St, Brooklyn, New York 11217 is devoted to the postal play of Colonia, plus a limited number of Diplomacy and selected variants. The zine is published once a month, with orders due 12 NOON on the publishing date (the first Saturday) unless otherwise noted.

The sub rate is still \$2.50/10. The Game Fee is \$2.00.

Game Openings: None

Variant Openings in other zines:

DRAGON & LAMB (Steve McLendon Box 57066 Webster, Texas 77598) has openings in COLONIA V and HOLOCAUST.

URF DURFAL (Greg Costikyan Box 865, Providence, RI 02912) has openings in YOUNGSTOWN

POLITICIAN (Konrad Baumeister 11416 Parkview Lane Hales Corners, WI 53130) has openings in YOUNGSTOWN (I think he has two or three spots left)

If any of you folks have an interest in any of these variants, contact the publishers involved.

Word has been received (via Konrad, who called me today) that Dave Bunke will cease publishing "9th Circle" in the very near future. I am willing to take on the World War III game, provided Dave (or someone else) will GM it. I'll also take over 1979FC, a regular Diplomacy game.

I left out one variant opening I am aware of: World War III(b) in "The Flying Dutchman" published by Jack Brawner 2745 54th Avenue S., St. Petersburg, Florida 33712.

A short note from Rod Walker:

The 2nd issue of ARDA, NAVB's infozine, is now out. The cost is \$1.10. This issue contains a complete topical catalogue of games obtainable from us and others, an alphabetical listing of the same games, plus an alphabetical listing of all other variants known to us (16 pages: over 300 variants games in the first list).

Our 3rd issue will contain articles on the Cline 9-man game and the Mercator variants ... plus corrections and other materials as these become available.

Subscriptions to ARDA are at the rate of 5¢ per page plus postage plus 2¢ for the envelope. We trade, but we are very irregular. Better you should subscribe.

Join the Variant Renaissance in North America: subscribe to ARDA and keep up with current developments. (Our prices are U.S. currency only; make checks payable to R.C. Walker) Canadians may order any of our games through NAVB-North. Write: NAVB c/o Rod Walker, 1273 Crest Drive, Encinitas, Ca 92024. We also answer inquiries, but require SASA with each inquiry or set of inquiries.

THE HOME OFFICE, NUMBER 11, Page 2

and now, the raison d'etre of this publication: THE GAMES

1979IO Diplomacy Winter 1901 GM: Fred Hyatt

The Builds:

Austria: (Gemignani) A Bud
England: (Cooper) F Lon, F Lvp
France: (Tucker) A Par
Germany: (Zipper) A Kie, A Ber
Italy (~~D'Allessandro~~ Prosnitz) F Nap
Russia (Kovalcik) A Mos, A War,
Turkey: (Sulsberger) F Smy

Gene Prosnitz (200 Clinton St. Brooklyn, NY 11201) is the new player for Italy. He has the addresses for the rest of the players.

Spring moves are on file for Austria and France.
Deadline for Spring 1902 is 12 NOON, February 2, 1980.

1979IO press:

Berlin: The German-Russian non-aggression pact has been much solidified by the builds of German Armies and clear fields in St. Petersburg.

1979Mdl SS III Spring 1016 GM: Fred Hyatt

CONNACHT: (~~Kendter~~) A Sligo - Roscommon, A Leitrim Hold, F Tuam (S) A Leitrim
A Roscommone- Anghaile

ENGLAND (Cooper) A Chester - Derby, A Stratford (s) A Shropshire,
A Shropshire (s) A Stratford, F N. St. George Chan - Bristol Chan.

KYMRU (McGranaghan) F Cardigan - Cardigan Bay, F Mona - Chester Bay, A Powys-
Gwynedd, A Hereford - Powys

LEINSTER (Grailey) A Tara (s) A Meath, F Dublin - S. Irish Sea, F Irish S.
(s) ULSTER A/F Down - N. Irish Sea. A Wexford - Ossory, A Meath (s)
MUNSTER A Cashell - Leitrim /NSO/

MUNSTER (~~Schleifer~~) NMR Armies Limerick, Thomond, Cork, Cashell HOLD

ORKNEY (HESS)? NMR Fleets Ske, N. Minch, Kyntyre HOLD

SCOTLAND (Colombo) F Linsmore (sc) - Alcluyd, A Sutherland - Caithness,
A Newcastle - Berwick, F Dundrennan - N. Irish Sea

ULSTER (Scheutz) F Armagh - Down, A Donegal - Omagh, A/F Down - N. Irish Sea.

Chris Ward 609 W. 114th St, New York, NY 10025 is the new player for Munster
Will Peggy Gemignani please submit stand-by orders for Orkney?

Fall 1016 orders due 12 NOON, February 2, 1980

79Mdl Press: KYMRU: Applications being taken for tour of English castles.
Double occupancy only 7 farthings.

1979 Dfh. Fall, 1752. GM: GENE PROSNITZ

HAPSBURGS GROW AND GROW.

RETREATS- NETHERLANDS F EAT-BBY
RUSSIA A KAR-FIN
FRANCE A BUR-OTB

AUSTRIA (HYATT). F BAH-GBS, A VIR-MAS, A OHI (S) VIR-MAS,
A POL H, A BAV H, A BUR-TOU, A SAV (S) BUR-TOU, F LGN (S)
BUR-TOU, A VEN-GRE, F ADR (C) VEN-GRE, A TRI-BOS, F ION-AEG,
F TYR-ION, F EPC-WAK, F MEL-WAK, F IWO S CHINESE F ECS-WPC.

CHINA (KEMPER). F WPC-NWG, F ECS-WPC, F SCS-CAM, A PEK H,
A SKG H, A CHG (S) SKG, A COC-SIA, A SZE-BMA, A BEN (S)
A SZE-BMA.

ENGLAND (PRICE). A PGY-MGO, A AGT-BRA, F GAL (S) DUTCH A COL-
PAN (imp, nso), F BAR-STP(nc), DIS-RET-NGS or OTB, F KAR (S)
F BAR-STP(nc), F NWY S KAR, F IRI-ENG, F GOG-MAT, A TOG-
NUM, A NIG-TOG, A SIA-CAM, A BMA-SIA, F AND-SUM.

FRANCE (~~PRICE~~). NMR. A QUE, A PAR, A GHA, A TBK H.
A MAS DIS, RET-ACA or OTB, F GBS DIS, RET-ACA, NAT, LAB or OTB,
F TOU DIS, RET-ARA or OTB.

NETHERLANDS (PAULSON). A COL-VZA, F WAT (S) AUSTRIAN F BAH-GBS,
F GBE-BLM, A FND-PAR, A SWE-FIN (ANNIH), F DEN-HAN, (which coast?),
F HAG (S) DEN-HAN, F ENG-EAT, F BBY (S) SPANISH A ARG-BOR,
A ANG H, A GAB (S) ANG, A MAH-KHA, F PIE-ARS, F GOA-WIO,

OTTOMAN (DOELLING). A BUL H, F EMD-AEG, A BAG-PER, A EGY H,
F PNG-ARS, A OMA H, A SIN-KHA, A AFG-PUN, A UZB-AFG, F CEY H,
F TAS-AUS, F BIS-TAH.

PORTUGAL (MUTO). A MAN-ONT, F YUK (S) MAN-ONT, A LAG-LIS, F CAL-MEX
F AZO (S) CAN, F CAN (S) AZO, F EAT-FAR, F SEA-ANG, A ZAM
(S) SEA-ANG, F MAL-WIO, F AFS-NWG, F COR-SAM, F SPC (S) COR-SAM,

RUSSIA (LEDDER). A RCF-BLM, F GOB-SWE, A FIN (S) GOB-SWE, F BAL
(S) GOB-SWE, F URA-BAR, F STP(nc) (S) URA-BAR, A LIT (S) STP,
A KAZ-UKR, A TAU-MRC, F IFN-CAN, F VEP (S) IFN-CAN, A OMS H,
A MON-MAN, A MAN-KOR,

SPAIN (BLANK). A ORE H, A PAN-MEX, F CAR (C) PAN-MEX, A ARG-BOR,
A HUE-LIS, A VAL-ALG, F WMD (C) VAL-ALG, A ETH-KEN, A NUB-FEZ,
A UGA-KAT, F MLS-JAV.

The new player for FRANCE is: Konrad Baumeister, 11416 Parkview
Lane, Hales Corners, Wisconsin 53130

1979 Dfh. Fall, 1752 Supply Center Chart.

AUSTRIA. FLA, VIR, LOU, OHI, MAS, VIE, BUD, TRI, BAV, POL, NAP,
PPS, SAV, TOU, GRE, HAW, WAK, IWO, GUA. 19, build 3.

CHINA. SAN, WUH, PEK, AMO, DTN, JAP, SKG, MNL, BEN, BIA.
10, build 1.

ENGLAND. ECU, AGT, PRU, BRA, LON, EDI, IRE, NWY, NIC, KAM, TOG,
MLA, SIA, SUM, ~~VXX~~. 14, build 1.
if BAR ret otb,
build 2.

FRANCE. QUE, ~~QXX~~, PAR, ~~YXX~~, ~~YXX~~, EAK, VOL, TBK, GHA. 6, remove
2,1,0 or build 1,
depending on rets.

NETHERLANDS. SUR, VZA, COL, BLM, ANT, HAG, DEN, HAN,
~~SXX~~, ANG, CON, GAB, GOA, KHA, MAH. 14, build 1.

OTTOMANS. IZM, JER, BAG, IST, ~~QXX~~, EGY, PER, AFG,
OMA, YEM, DIE, CEY, TAH, NWZ, AUS. 14, build 2.

PORTUGAL. ~~QXX~~, CAL, ALA, VAN, MTA, ONT, LAG, LIS, AZO,
CPC, ZAN, NAL, MOZ, MAL, ~~VXX~~, SAM, TAR, PIJ, NWG.
17, build 4.

RUSSIA. BAH, ~~VXX~~, STP, MOS, CRI, ~~SWE~~, IFN, MRC, TAU,
OMS, IRK, KOR, MAN, MON, VIA. 14, even.

SPAIN. MEX, ORE, ~~QXX~~, HON, MAD, VAL, TUN, BOR, 13, build 2.
ETH, UGA, KEN, SOM, JAV, BEO.

1979Dfh Press. (from last season)

MOSCOW: The Czar accused foreign nations of economic warfare in an angry proclamation: "We have sent 15 cancelled stamps to foreign govts in the past 2 seasons and received only 2 in return. We will therefore ally with any power who sends us a cancelled stamp this turn. An extra bonus is available for those who enclose a message.

CRIMEA: Jimmy (the Armenian) Snyderovsky has issued odds on various powers answering the Czar's challenge.

Spain 1-1
England, Austria 3-1
France, Netherlands 10-1
Ottomans, China 20-1
Portugal 50-1

New Press.

EMPEROR TO ENGLAND: Your word is as good as a Chinese fortune cooky. Feel the wrath of the war dragon come to lay waste your land.

GENEVA:

Ancient Eastern proverb. Those who attempt to telephone move changes, shortly after deadline, at request of "ally", may be happy to miss deadline, may find "ally's" knife in back.

Change of Address. Glean L edder, 2249 Delaware, Buffalo, N.Y.

Builds and Spring moves due, Wed, Jan. 30, unless three or more players vote for split seasons.

Send to Gene Prosnitz, 200 Clinton St, Bklyn, N.Y. 11201
212 UL 5 0089

1979Gfh Colonia V, Winter 1751. Separation of Seasons Granted
GM; Karl Scheutz

The Builds:

AUSTRIA (Paulson) A Rum RET Gal; Build F Fla, F Haw, F Nap, F Tri, A Bud

CHINA (Hyatt) Build F Amo, A San, A Wuh

ENGLAND (Hess) Build A Ecu, A Nig, A Lon, F Edi, F Mla

FRANCE (Cooper) Build A Que, F Dak, plays one short

NETHERLANDS (Sulsberger) Build F Ang, F Hag, A Goa, A Sur. F Hel RET Den

OTTOMAN (Costikyan) Build F Jer(sc) A Bag

PORTUGAL (Grailey) Build F Ala, F Lag, F Cpc, F Aus, plays one short

RUSSIA (Luckenbill) NBR Plays 3 short

SPAIN (Struckman) NBR Plays 5 short.

Spring 1752 orders due to Karl 9:00 PM, January 30, 1980

No stand-bys are being called for, as the problem is probably with the U.S. Mail Service.

1979Ffh COA: Jack Brawner 2745 54th Ave. S. St. Petersburg, Fla. 33712

RAT ROLLS ALONG
WEST IN DISARRAY
CHINA ON THE ROPES

AUSTRIA(PRICE): A PSA(S) A HAN, A BAV(S)A HAN, A HAN(S) A BAV, A SSS-SAV, A VEN(S)A SSS-SAV, A TRI-VIE, F PPS(wc)(S)A SSS-SAV, F ION-TYR, F TUN(S) F ION-TYR(DIS-RET-ION, OTB), F NAP(S) F ION-TYR, F ADR(S) F NAP, F HAW-PYA, F IWO(S) F HAW-PYA, F MEL-GUA, A FLA H(UNORDERED), A OHI H(UNORDERED).

CHINA(HYATT): F PYA-HAW, F NPC(S) F PYA-HAW, A PEK-WUH, A AMO-CTN, A SAN-PEK(DIS-ANN).

ENGLAND(COUNSELMAN): A COL(S)A AMA-MNS, A AMA-MNS, A PRU-BOL, F IRE-EAT, F IRI(S) F IRE-EAT, F BAR(S) F NWY, F NWY(S) F BAR, F NTH-NEB(?NEB), A NIG-KAM, F GOG(S) A NIG-KAM, A ASH-TOG, A SIA-BMA, A COC(S) A SIA-BMA, F SUM-MLS.

FRANCE(BLAU): A MAS-OHI, A ONT(S)A MAS-OHI, F VIR-FLA, F BBY H, A BOR H, A FND-BUR, A BUR-SSS, A SAV(S) A BUR-SSS(DIS-RET-TOU, OTB), F LIG-PPS(wc), A SAH-TBK, A GHA-TBK, F DAK H.

NETHERLANDS(DOELLING): A VZA(S) F WIN-SUR, F WIN-SUR, A JUN-BEL, A HAG-HAN, F DEN(S) A HAG(OTM), A RHI(S) A HAN(OTM), A KAM-CON, F GAB-GOG, A KAT-ZAM, A ANG(S) A KAT-ZAM, A KHA H, A BEN H, F BBL-GOA.

OTTOMAN(ROHDE): F JER(sc)-RED, F EMD H, F LIB(S)AUSTRIAN F TUNISIA, A SUD-NUB, A ARM-PER, A KAS-MAH, A SKG-AFG, F PNG-ARS, F YEM(S) F PNG-ARS, A OMA H, F EIO-CEY, F FIJ H, F BIS H.

PORTUGAL(RICCI): F ORE H, F ALA-YUK, F YUK-HUD, A MTA-ONT, F WAT-SUR, F GBE(S) RUSSIAN A RIC-EE, A LEO-BOR, F LIS-EAT, F CAN(S) F LIS-EAT, A ZAM-ANG(DIS-RET-KAL, NAL, MOZ, TAN, OTB), F CPC-SEA, F GOA-CIR, F DIE-WIO, F TAS-ANO, F COR H, F NWZ-TAS.

RUSSIA(PROSNITZ): ARIC-BEL, A BRA-MGO, A AGT-BOL, A IFNI PRAYS FOR DELIVERANCE(AND GETS IT!) F MAT(S) PORTUGESE F CPC-SEA, F StP(sc)-BAL, F SWE-NWY, A FIN-StP, F ECS-YEL, F JAP-ECS, F SOO-JAP, A GBI-SAN, A CHG(S) A GBI-SAN, A MON-GBI, A MAN-PEK.

SPAIN(SCHUETZ): A HON-MEX, F GOM-CUB, A LOU-FLA, A MAD H, F WMD(S)F ALG-TUN, A NUM(S) F ALG-TUN, F ALG-TUN, A MRC(S) FRENCH A SAH-IFN(NSO), A NUB-UGA, A ETH-SUD, F SOM-GAD, F ARS(S) F SOM-ARA(IMP&NSO&DIS-RET-SIN, PEI, SMS, SOM, OTB), F MNL-ECS(IMP), F WPC(S) F WAK-MEL, F WAK-MEL F SLS-TAR.

DEADLINE WILL BE: WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 30, 1979, 9:00 PM. (UNLESS, OF COURSE, FRED CHANGES IT).

NOW, BEFORE CERTAIN OF YOU START TO YELL, I HAVE DOUBLECHECKED THE WRITTEN ORDERS I RECEIVED AND THE DUTCH, SPANISH AND ENGLISH MOVES WERE WRITTEN JUST AS I TYPED THEM! ALSO, MNL DOES NOT BORDER ON THE ECS, NOR CAN A UNIT IN SOMALIA GO TO ARA, UNLESS IT IS AN ARMY BEING CONVOYED THERE. ADDITIONALLY, AUSTRIA SENT IN REMOVALS FOR TWO UNITS WITH THE WINTER ADJUSTMENTS. NONE WERE CALLED FOR OR REQUIRED, SO THEY WERE DISALLOWED. LASTLY, THE ONLY FRENCH FLEET IN NORTH AMERICA IS IN VIR, I BELIEVE THAT A MAS WAS ERRONEOUSLY LISTED AS A FLEET ON THE LAST TURN(A RETREAT).

ANALYSIS FOR 1979 Efh for Fall 1751

by Gene Prosnitz

In North America, Spain and France appear committed to an anti-Austrian alliance. The big Question is: What will Portugal do? The Portuguese appear to be uncommitted in most parts of the globe.

The French failure to move the West Atlantic fleet west is surprising. Perhaps this was an oversight.

In South America, the apparent Anglo-Dutch alliance obtained maximum expansion.

The reason for the English move to West Atlantic is unclear. That fleet may be heading for Spanish waters. Russia's move to Recife may have been a counter measure against an expected Anglo-Dutch attack in Scandinavia. Now that it appears that these three powers have resolved their differences, the Recife army should withdraw south.

In Europe: The Austrian position is becoming desperate, with France, Netherlands and Russia (and possibly Ottoman) all moving in for the kill. Austria may have a recurrent problem. There appear to be French-Dutch alliances in Home Office Games 1,2,3,5 and 6, and Russo-Turkish alliances in Games 1,3,5 and possibly 6.

Besides, Austria made weak moves, and didn't attempt to defend either Poland or Bavaria. On the other hand, Netherlands erred by failing to use his Rhine army constructively.

Spain wisely pulled back from Aragon, in deference to Spanish-French friendship.

The Portuguese move to Huelvas is a puzzle, an attempted convoy to Morocco would have been more logical. There was no need to vacate Lisbon, since Portugal got "only" four builds; besides, a move to Lagos or Leon would be less threatening to Spain. Could Portugal, now poised in California, Huelvas and New Guinea, be planning a Spanish stab?

In East Africa, on the other hand, The Spanish and Portuguese have made an unusual division, with Spain getting the better of it; with Portugal giving up a build, to let Spain take Malagasy instead of Ethiopia.

The battle in EastAsia shapes up as a good, evenly matched fight, with Russia and Ottoman against Netherlands and China. Interestingly Russia and Netherlands are working together in Europe, and are in opposing camps in Asia (although not in direct conflict with each other).

In the Pacific, I think that Spain's move to Manila, rather than

Cambodia, was an error, since Spain desperately needs an additional Pacific fleet. Spain could have gambled that Austria would order West Pacific to Iwo for the sure build (although he didn't).

In the early years of Colonia its usually better to go for builds rather than position, as China did this year. There are exceptions. Since England is getting three builds, and really doesn't need more, it made sense for England to go for position (Malay Sea and Gulf of Siam) rather than a Cambodian build. The result, England is now a lock on Borneo.

I'm convinced that that the latest Colonia map revisions seriously weaken Spain's Pacific position.

Portugal is in the best shape of the Pacific powers in this game, with Fiji guaranteed next move.

Looking at the overall picture: This is a well balanced, pretty well played game, at present. All the powers are doing well except for Austria (and Spain, which is a bit shaky).

1979Efh Winter 1751 and Spring 1752 Colonia V GM: Fred Hyatt

AUSTRIA (Hooton) Build F Fla, F Haw; F Fla - Lou, A Lou - Ohi, A Vir (s)
A Lou - Ohi, F Nap - Pps(wc), A Sil (s) A Bav, A Bav H /Ann/ A Bos - Tri,
A Vie - Ven, F Wpc - Mnl, F Wak - Mel, F Haw - Npc,

CHINA (Sergeant) Build A San, F Amo, F Ctn; A Skg (s) A Chg - Kan, A Chg - Kan,
 A Gbi (s) A Chg - Kan, A Tai (s) F Amo - Ecs, F Soj - Jap, A Bma - Ben,
 A Tib - Kas, F Pek - Yel, A San (s) A Gbi, F Ctn - For, F Amo - Ecs

ENGLAND (McPherrren) Build F Ecu, A Nig, F Mla; A Hon H, F Gop (s) A Hon,
 F Nwy (s) F Nth, F Nth (s) F Nwy, F Far (s) F Eat, F Eat H, A Gab - Kam,
 F Tog - GOG, A Nig - Tog, F Gos - Cam, F Mls - Eio, F Mla - Sia(wc)
 F Ecu - Pru

FRANCE (Scheutz) A Mas (s) A Ont - Ohi, A Ont - Ohi, F Wat - Bah, A Sav - Ven,
A Pps (s) A Sav - Ven, A Sss (s) A Say - Ven, F Gha - Dak, F Dak - Sen,
A Tbk - Sah, F Bri (s) ENGLISH F Far - Eat/NSO/ F Que - Gbs, F Tou - Lgn,
 A Bor - Arg, I LEFT OUT HIS BUILDS: F Que, F Tou, A Bor, F Dak

NETHERLANDS (Schaller) Build: F Sur, A Ant, A Ang, F Goa; F Cub - Gom
 A Blm H, F Sur - Win, F Bal - Den, A Han (s) A Rhi - Bav, A Sax (s) A Rhi -
 Bav, A Rhi - Bav, A Ant - Rhi, A Con - Rua, A Zam - Tan, A Ang - Kat,
A Pun - Kha, A Kha - Pei, F Goa - Wio

OTTOMAN (Cooper) Build: F Tah, A Ist, F Izm, F Bag; F Far - Spc, F Die - Wio,
 F Ion (s) F Egy(nc) - Lib, A Gre (s) A Ist - Bul, A Per - Sin, F Egy(nc) - Li
 A Ars (c) A Oma - Pei, A Oma - Pei, A Uzb (s) A Afg, A Afg (s) A Per - Sin
 F Tah - Bis, A Ist - Bul, F Izm - Aeg, F Bag - Per

PORTUGAL (Kendter) Build: A Lag, F Lis, A Cpc, F Aus; F Vep (s) A Lag - Ifn
 A Hue - Lag, F Can (c) A Lag - Ifn, A Lag - Ifn, F Lis (s) F Can, A Van *Mta
 A Cal - Ore, F Sio - Sea, A Moz-Zam, FNwg- Afs, F Cor - Fij, F Aus - Cor,
 A Cpc - Kal

(continued on Page 9)

1979Efh (cont'd)

RUSSIA (Zipper) Build: A Mos, A Oms, F Vla, F Bra; A Tau - Mrc, F Ifn - Mrc/
 ANN/ F Agt - Swa, A Ric H, F Swe (s) F Bot, F Bot (s) F Swe, A Pol (s) A Rum,
 A Rum (s) A Pol, A Man (s) A Oms - Mon, A Kan (s) A Oms - Mon/dis. ret Tur, Ot
 F Kor (s) F Ecs - Yel, F Ecs - Yel, A Cri - Lit, A Mos - Ura, A Oms - Mon,
 F Vla - Soj, F Bra - MAT

SPAIN (McLendon) A Hon RET OTB. Build F Mex(ec) A Val, A Som; A Mad H,
 F Wmd (c) A Val - Alg, A Tun (s) A Val - Alg, A Val - Alg, A Tex - Lou,
F Mex(ec) - Gom, F Mal - Wio, A Ken - Tan, A Som - Eth, F Dav - Tim,
F Mnl - Wpc

1979Efh Press: Lisbon to London: Your sudden silence is rather ominous!
 Antwerp to Madrid: I would certainly hope that I have seen the last of your
 anti-Dutch aggression.

Fall 1752 orders due 12 NOON, February 2, 1980

1979Ffh Colonia V, Winter 1751 and Spring 1752 GM: Fred Hyatt
 AUSTRIA (Struckman) Build: A Via, A Bud, F Haw, F Fla; A Lou - Chi, A Mas -
Chi, A Bur (s) A Sss, F Pps - Lgn/NSU/ A Pps H/Unordered, A Sil - Bav,
A Sss (s) A Vie - Ven, A Vie - Ven, A Bud - Vie, F Haw - Mel, F Wak - Spc,
F Tar (s) F Wak - Spc, F Fla - Gom

CHINA (Funkenbusch) Build: F Amo, A San; A Kan (s) A Gbi - Mon, A Bma H,
 A Lao - Cam, A Tib - Kas, F Soj - Vla, A Jeh - Man, A Gbi - Mon, A San - Gbi,
 F Yel (s) A Jeh - Man, F Amo - For

ENGLAND (McGranaghan) Build: A Ecu, F Lon, F Nig, A Mla; A Ecu - Col, A Col -
 Mns, A Pru - Ama, F Ire (s) F Far - Eat, F Eng - Hel, F Far - Eat, F Lon - Eng
F Nwy - Ska, A Kam - Con, A Tbk H/Dis. RET Ash, Otb/ F Nig - Gog, A Mla H,
F Mls - Gos, F Sia(ec) H

FRANCE (Cheek) Build: A Que; A Sav (s) NETHERLANDS A Rhi - Sss /NSO/ A Tou H,
 A Par H, F Eat - Bby, A Gha (s) A Vol - Tbk, A Vol - Tbk, A Ore - Mta,
 A Aca - Ont, A Que (s) A Aca - Ont

NETHERLANDS (Brawner) Build: F Sur, A Ant, A Hag, A Ang, F Goa, is one short;
A Kha - Sin, A Pun - Kas, A Zam (s) PORTUGUESE A Moz - Tan/NSO/ A Gab - Con
 A Vza - Sur, F Cub - Gom, A Han - Sax, F Den - Ska/ ANN/ A Rhi - Bav,
 F Sur - Win, A Ant - Fnd, A Hag - Han, A Ang - Kat, F Goa - Wio

OTTOMAN (Stimmel) Build: F Tah, F Bag, A Jer, A Izm: A Bul (s) F Gre, F Gre
 (s) A Bul, A Afg - Kas, A Sin (s) A Per - Afg, A Per - Afg, A Nub - Rua,
 F Yem - Ars, F Oma (s) F Yem - Ars, F Cey - Bbl, F Sam H, F Tah - Anc,
 F Bag - Png, A Izm - Arm, A Jer - Egy

PORTUGAL (Prosnitz) Build: F Ala, F Lis, F Cpc, F Aus, is one short;
 F Ala - Gaa, A Van - Mta, A Ont - Mta/dis RET Yuk, Mis, Otb/ F Lis - Eat
 F Azo (s) F Lis - Eat, F Can (s) F Lis - Eat, A Leo - Bor, A Moz H, F Mal -
Mzc, F Cpc - Sea, F Nwz (s) F Aus - Cor, F Aus - Cor, F Fij - Spc

RUSSIA (Schaller) Build: F Bra, A Ifn, A Oms, F Vla; F Mat - Ric, F Bra - Mat
 A Agt - Pgy, A Ifn - Sah, A Mrc - Tau, A Sah - Sen, F Bal (s) F Swe - Den,
 F Swe - Den, A Gal - Pol, A Ura - Oms, A Rum H, A Oms - Tur, F Vla - Kor,
 F Ecs (s) F Vla - Kor, A Man - Gbi, A Mon (s) A Man - Gbi/ANN/ A Sib - Vla
 A Pol - Psa

1979 Ffh (Cont'd)

SPAIN (Gemignani) Build: F Mex(eg) A Mad, A Som, F Mnl; F Hon(wc) - Got, A Tex H, F Mex(ec) - Car, A Mad - Arg, A Som - Ken, A Uga - Kat, A Ken - Tan, A Tun - Num, F Wmd H/unordered/ F Lig - Tun, F Nwg - Wpc, F Mnl - Scs, F Beo (s) F Mnl - Scs

FALL 1752 orders due 12 NOON, February 2, 1980

1979AfH Colonia IV, Winter 1752 and Spring 1753 GM: Fred Hyatt
AUSTRIA (CD) GM removes A Vir; F Gbs, A Ven, A Bos, A Bud, A Vie, F Npc HOLD

CHINA (Gemiginani) A Pek RET San, Remove F Mic; F Gtn (s) A Ctn - Amo/IMP/
A Chg (s) A Uzb - Tur/IMP DIS RET tib, gbi, yun, otb/ A Uzb - Tur/ ANN/
A Bma - Ben, A Ctn - Amo, A San - Pek/Dis RET wuh, otb/

ENGLAND (Cooper) Build F Edi, F Mla; A Col H/ Dis. RET Ecu, mns/ A Ama - Pru,
A Jun - Ama, F Tog - Gog, A Kam (s) A Gab, A Gab (s) A Kam, A Sia - Cam,
F Jav - Mls, F Mla - Gos, F Sum - And, F Ire (s) F Iri, F Lon - Eng,
F Ska - Nwy, F Iri (s) F Lon - Eng, F Nth (s) F Lon - Eng, F Edi - Far

FRANCE (Schiwautz) Build F Dak, F Bor; A Que - Ont, A Mas (s) A Que - Ont,
A Vir - Ohi, F Eng - Eat/Dis RET bri, otb/ F Bor - Bby, A Sav - Ven,
A Bur - SSS, F Alg - Mrc, A Tau (s) F Alg - Mrc, A Vol (s) F Dak, F Ash -
Gha, F Dak (s) F Ash - Gha, F Sah (s) PORTUGUESE F Can - Ifn/ANN/ A Tou - Bor
NSU/

NETHERLANDS (Prosnitz) Build A Sur, F Goa, is one short; A Vza - Col, F Car (s)
A Vza - Col, A Mns - Blm, A Sur (s) A Mns - Blm, A Ant - Rhi, F Hag - Hel,
F Han(wc) (s) F Den, F Den (s) F Hag - Hel, A Rhi - Bav, A Ang (s) A Con,
A Con (s) SPANISH A Nub - Fez, F Cey - Wio, A Kha (s) A Niz - Pei, A Niz -
Pei, F Goa (s) A Niz - Pei

OTTOMAN (Scheutz) No Changes; F Ion (c) A Lib - Gre, F Adr (s) A Lib - Gre,
A Lib - Gre, A Mor (s) RUSSIAN A Rum - Gal, F Emd - Aeg, A Per - Uzb,
A Gre - Bul, A Pei - Kha/ANN/ F Ars (s) A Pei - Kha/ DIS RET: sin, per, png,
oma, yem, sms, gad, A Afg (s) A Per - Uzb, F Epc (s) F Tar - Spc, F Mel - Haw,
F Tar - Spc/ DIS RET Mel, otb/

PORTUGAL: (Lipscomb) ADD MTA to supply list, builds four: F Ala, F Lis, F Cpc,
F Aus; F Eat (s) A Leo, A Leo (s) SPANISH A Mad, F Can - Ifn, F Mrc (s) F Can-
Ifn/ DIS RET gib, otb/ A Ore - Mis, A Mta - Mis, A Cal (s) SPANISH F Mex(wc)/
OTM/ F Sea - Mat, F Die (s) NETHERLANDS F Cey - Wio, A Moz H, F Sam (s) F Spc,
F Sls - Tar, F Spc (s) F Sls - Tar, F Vep (s) F Sea - Mat, F Ala - Ber,
F Lis - Can, F Cpc - Sea, F Aus - Cor

RUSSIA (Kluge) A Mrc RET Ifn; Build A Oms, F Vla: A Ric - Blm, F Mat - Dak/
Dis RET Ash, bha, bra otb/ A Sen (s) A Ifn - Sah, A Ifn - Sah, F Agt - Swa,
A Rum - Gal, A Psa - Han, F Swe (s) ENGLISH F Ska - Den/NSO/ A Pol - Sil,
A Skg (s) A Kan - Chg, A Kan - Chg, A Pek (s) A Gbi - San, A Gbi - San,
F Yel - Amo, F Ecs (s) F Yel - Amo, F Sof - Jap, A Oms - Tur, F Vla - Soo

SPAIN (Schaller) Build F Mex(wc), F Val, F Som, F Mnl, is one short; A Lou
(s) FRENCH A Vir - Fla/NSO/ F Cub - Gom, A Hon - Pan, F Mex(wc) - Hon(wc),
F Pps(wc) (s) F Nap, F Nap H, A Mad H, F Val - Wmd, F Gua (s) F Nwg - Wpc,
F Beo - Gos, F Nwg - Wpc, A Kat - Uga, A Nub - Fez, F Wio - Ars, F Mnl - Scs,
F Som (s) F Wio - Ars

Fall 1753 orders due 12 NOON February 2, 1980

1979Bfh Colonia IV, Winter 1752 and Spring 1753, GM: Fred Hyatt

AUSTRIA: (Schaller) A Han RET Sax; Build F Fla, A Tri; A Ohi (s) A Mas,
A Mas (s) A Ohi, F Cub (s) Fla - Bah, F Fla - Bah, A Sax - Han, A Tri - Ven
A Psa (s) A Sax - Han, A Vie (s) A Tri - Ven, A Sil (s) A Mor - Pol, A Mor-
Pol, F Tyr - Lgn, F Pps(wc) (s) F Try - Lgn, A Gal (s) A Mor - Pol,
F Npc (s) F Mic - Jap, F Wak - Mel, F Mic - Jap,

CHINA (Price) Build F Amo, A Wuh; A Ben H, A Sia (s) A Coc - Cam, A Wuh - Yun
A Bma H/unordered/ A Coc - Cam/NSU/ A Pek (s) F Kor - Man, A Gbi - Mon,
F Yel (s) F Kor - Man, A Cng - Kan, F Jap -SOJ, F Kor - Man, F Amo- Ecs

ENGLAND (Scheutz) No Changes; A Col H, A Pru H, A Yor H, F Ire - Iri,
F Eat (s) NETHERLANDS F Gbe -Azo, F Nwy - Swe, A Kam - Fez,, F Sea - Cpc
A Num - Bnn, F Eio - Die, F Sum - Mls, A Mla - Sia

FRANCE (Ricci) NOTE: France captured TBK in 1751, so has two builds due:
Build A Que, F Tou; A Ont (s) A Mis - Ohi, A Mis - Ohi, A Que - Aca,
F Gbs - Vir, A Bur - Sss, A Sav - Pps, F Lis (s) F Ifn - Can, F Ifn - Can,
F Leo (s) F Lis, A Gha - Tbk, F Tou - Lgn, F Mat - Ve p

NETHERLANDS (Kluge) No Changes; A Vza (s) ENGLISH A Col, F Win - Bah,
F Gbe - Azo, A Con - Kat, A Ang (s) A Con - Kat, F Mal - Mzc, A Cir - Mah,
A Pei - Goa/ Dis RET NIZ, otb/ A Ant - Rhi, A Hag (s) F Han(wc), A Sss - Bav,
F Han(wc) H

OTTOMAN (Lipscomb) Build F Tah, F Bag, A Jer, A Izm; A Cau - Ukr, A Kaz - Ura,
A Lib (s) A Sud - Fez, A Per - Kaz, F Ars - Pei, F Cri - Bla, F Emd (s) A
Lib, A Afg - Skg, A Niz - Cir, A Kha (s) F Ars - Pei, A Sud - Fez, F Ion
(s) SPANISH F Tun, F Wio - Goa, F Bis - Tas, F Fij - Cor, F Tah - Spc,
F Bag - Png, A Jer - Bag, A Izm - Arm

PORTUGAL (Counselman) No Changes; F Gaa (s) A Yuh - Van, A Yuk - Van,
A Mta (s) A Yuk - Van, F Vep - Mat, F Can - Vep/DIS RET Mrc, otb/ A Moz-Tan
A Kal H, F Sio - Mzc, F Cor H, F Nwg (s) F Cor, F Tas (s) F Cor

RUSSIA (Cooper) F Kor RET Vla, Remove A Bra; A Bha H, A Mrc - Ifn, A Tau (s)
SPANISH F Tun, F Soj *-Jap, F Soo (s) F Soj - Jap, F Vla - Kor, A Pol H,
F Lit (s) A Pol, F Bal (s) A Pol, A Oms - Per, A Kan - Skg, A Tur (s) A Kan
- Skg, A Irk (s) A Man, A Mon (s) A Man, A Man (s) F Vla - Kor/Dis RET Vla,
Sib, otb/

SPAIN (Prosnitz) Build A Mex, F Val, F Mnl; A Ore H, F Cal (s) A Ore, F Car H
F Gib (s) FRENCH F Lis - Can, F Tun (s) F Val - Wmd, A Lag H, A Hue -Val,
A Uga - Tan, A Eth - Ken, F Som - Sms, F Beo - Mls, F Wpc (s) F Mnl - Afs,
F Jav (s) F Beo - Mls, F Mnl - Afs, A Mex - Uta, F Val - Wmd

CONCESSION PROPOSAL: A Concession to the Ottoman Empire has been proposed.
The voting will be in accordance with Rule 8 of the Colonia IV rules. A
failure to vote will be taken as an agreement to the concession, Remember:
it takes 3/4 of the supply centers to pass the proposal or 94 "Yes" votes
with all centers occupied. One feature of Rule 8, by request, is waived:
The voting will be take place with the Fall 1753 orders rather than the
Winter 1753 builds.

Fall 1753 orders and Concession Voting due 12 NOON, February 2, 1980.

1979Bfh press on next page.

1979Bfh Press:

Vienna to Antwerp: On the other hand --***

Peking: Man! On with WW III!

Moscow: Tsar Philip today called upon the Western Powers of Austria and England to cease "their insane, suicidal attacks on Spain, France and The Netherlands. London and Vienna", commented the Tsar, "are like the many who squander time in frolic while leaving the few, like Russia, to guard the gates. But the day has dawned when the few aren't enough, and the enemy is inside the walls." "Russia", said the Tsar, "will fight the Sino-Turkish Monster, but it isn't out of choice. Russia never had that luxury, and it is Russian blood which is buying time for the West. Russia's wish, and probably its final one, is not for victory, or even survival, but that its' ultimate sacrifice will not have been in vain. Therefore, Russia demands an accounting on the diplomatic scales from the West."

Lastly, remarked the Tsar "despite our grievances with Peking, we bear no hard feelings as Emperor Ch'uck has, at least, proven himself an honorable adversary". Inside sources in Moscow have informed the press that Tsar Philip intends to retire to the Winter Palace in St. Petersburg to compile a dossier on his experiences with the Sultan, tentatively titled "Things I've Learned after it was too late!"

NOTE: The GM WILL publish the vote as recorded by each power.

THE HOME OFFICE, Number 11
Fred G. Hyatt
400 State Street
Brooklyn, New York 11217



Please Stand By in * _____

This is your last issue!
Please Renew your sub!!

Rod Walker (17)
1273 Crest Drive
Encinitas, Ca 92024